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An Emergency Preparedness Survey was 

conducted by the Indiana Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.73.

Survey Date:  12/07/22

Facility Number:  001215

Provider Number:  155796

AIM Number:  100450890

At this Emergency Preparedness survey, The 

Cedars was found in compliance with Emergency 

Preparedness Requirements for Medicare and 

Medicaid Participating Providers and Suppliers, 42 

CFR 483.73. The facility has a capacity of 65 and 

had a census of 38 at the time of this survey.

Quality Review completed on 12/08/22
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A Life Safety Code Recertification and State 

Licensure Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

Department of Health in accordance with 42 CFR 

483.90(a).

Survey Date:  12/07/22

Facility Number:  001215

Provider Number:  155796

AIM Number:  100450890

At this Life Safety Code survey, The Cedars was 

found not in compliance with Requirements for 

Participation in Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR 

Subpart 483.90(a), Life Safety from Fire, and the 

K 0000  
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2012 edition of the National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety Code (LSC), 

Chapter 19, Existing Health Care Occupancies and 

410 IAC 16.2.

This one story facility with a basement was 

determined to be of Type V (111) construction and 

was fully sprinklered.  The facility has a fire alarm 

system with smoke detection in the corridors, 

areas open to the corridors and hard wired smoke 

detectors in the resident rooms. The facility is 

fully protected by a Type II EES 300 kW diesel 

generator. The facility has a capacity of 65 and 

had a census of 38 at the time of this survey.

All areas where the residents have customary 

access are sprinklered. All areas which provided 

facility services were sprinklered. The facility does 

have a barn providing facility services that was 

not sprinklered.

Quality Review completed on 12/08/22

NFPA 101 

Doors with Self-Closing Devices 

Doors with Self-Closing Devices

Doors in an exit passageway, stairway 

enclosure, or horizontal exit, smoke barrier, 

or hazardous area enclosure are self-closing 

and kept in the closed position, unless held 

open by a release device complying with 

7.2.1.8.2 that automatically closes all such 

doors throughout the smoke compartment or 

entire facility upon activation of:

* Required manual fire alarm system; and 

* Local smoke detectors designed to detect 

smoke passing through the opening or a 

required smoke detection system; and 

* Automatic sprinkler system, if installed; and 

* Loss of power.

K 0223
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18.2.2.2.7, 18.2.2.2.8, 19.2.2.2.7, 19.2.2.2.8

Based on observation and interview the facility 

failed to ensure 2 of 2 rolling fire doors/windows 

located in smoke barriers were kept in a closed 

position unless held open by a release device 

complying with 7.2.1.8.2. 

(1) Upon release of the hold-open mechanism, the 

leaf becomes self-closing. 

(2) The release device is designed so that the leaf 

instantly releases manually and, upon release, 

becomes self-closing, or the leaf can be readily 

closed.

(3) The automatic releasing mechanism or medium 

is activated by the operation of approved smoke 

detectors installed in accordance with the 

requirements for smoke detectors for door leaf 

release service in NFPA 72, National Fire Alarm 

and Signaling Code.

(4) Upon loss of power to the hold-open device, 

the hold open mechanism is released, and the 

door leaf becomes self-closing. This deficient 

practice could affect all residents.

Findings include: 

Based on observations with the Maintenance 

Director on 12/07/22 at 12:30 p.m., there was a 

rolling fire door in the 300-smoke wall located in 

the salon, and a rolling fire door/window in the 

smoke wall between the kitchen and dining room. 

Both doors were held open with a cable 

containing a fusible link that did not release the 

door/window with the fire alarm. Based on 

interview at the time of observation, the 

Maintenance Director agreed both doors were 

held open with a device that did not release with 

the fire alarm and stated the rolling door/window 

did not close when the fire alarm system was 

activated. 

K 0223 In regard to the roll up fire doors 

located in the kitchen, it is not a 

penetration though a smoke 

barrier and is in compliance with 

current regulations; therefore no 

changes will be needed. In regard 

to the salon roll up door, quotes 

have been obtained. The board will 

make the final decision as to 

replacement with a fire system 

tied roll up door to meet the 

regulations, or permanently 

securing the door so it is no longer 

in use. The board may also opt to 

permanently close the doorway to 

create a smoke and fire barrier 

with 2 layers of 5/8 drywall on both 

sides of steel studs.  The facility 

was checked to ensure no other 

roll up doors in the nursing facility 

were out of compliance with this 

regulation and none were found. 

The corrective action will be 

completed as soon as possible 

but not later than March 7, 2022.

03/07/2023  12:00:00AM
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The finding was reviewed with the Administrator 

and Maintenance Director during the exit 

conference. 

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 

Hazardous Areas - Enclosure 

Hazardous Areas - Enclosure 

Hazardous areas are protected by a fire 

barrier having 1-hour fire resistance rating 

(with 3/4 hour fire rated doors) or an 

automatic fire extinguishing system in 

accordance with 8.7.1 or 19.3.5.9. When the 

approved automatic fire extinguishing system 

option is used, the areas shall be separated 

from other spaces by smoke resisting 

partitions and doors in accordance with 8.4. 

Doors shall be self-closing or 

automatic-closing and permitted to have 

nonrated or field-applied protective plates that 

do not exceed 48 inches from the bottom of 

the door. 

Describe the floor and zone locations of 

hazardous areas that are deficient in 

REMARKS. 

19.3.2.1, 19.3.5.9

Area Automatic Sprinkler

Separation N/A

a. Boiler and Fuel-Fired Heater Rooms

b. Laundries (larger than 100 square feet)

c. Repair, Maintenance, and Paint Shops

d. Soiled Linen Rooms (exceeding 64 

gallons)

e. Trash Collection Rooms

(exceeding 64 gallons)

f. Combustible Storage Rooms/Spaces

(over 50 square feet)

g. Laboratories (if classified as Severe 

K 0321

SS=E
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Hazard - see K322)

Based on observation and interview, the facility 

failed to ensure the corridor doors to 1 of 3 soiled 

utility rooms was provided with a self-closing 

device which would cause the door to 

automatically close and latch into the door frame. 

This deficient practice could affect staff in the 

service hall.

Findings include:

Based on observations during a tour of the facility 

with the Maintenance Director on 12/07/22 at 

12:05 p.m., the 300-hall soiled utility room 

exceeding 64 gallons of dirty linen and trash was 

equipped with self-closing device but did not 

latch into the frame due to paper shoved into the 

strike opening in the door frame. Based on 

interview at the time of observation, the 

Maintenance Director agreed paper was shoved in 

the latch catch preventing the door from latching 

and did remove the paper. 

3.1-19(b)

K 0321 In regard to the blocked open door 

leading to a hazardous area, a 

search of other doors leading to 

other hazardous areas was 

conducted and all were found 

secured. An in-service with all staff 

will be conducted to educate on 

the importance of not interfering 

with locking devices for safety. 

Agency staff will also be oriented 

to ensure that they understand the 

importance of not interfering with 

locking devices. An audit of 20 

doors per month will be conducted 

for 6 months to ensure 

compliance. This will be monitored 

in a QAPI PIP for 6 months with a 

100% success rate prior to 

removal. This corrective action will 

be completed by January 26, 

2022.

01/26/2023  12:00:00AM
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